
NOTICE

OF

MEETING

INFRASTRUCTURE OVERVIEW & 
SCRUTINY PANEL

will meet on

WEDNESDAY, 9TH OCTOBER, 2019

At 6.00 pm

in the

COUNCIL CHAMBER - TOWN HALL, MAIDENHEAD

TO: MEMBERS OF THE INFRASTRUCTURE OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY PANEL

COUNCILLORS GURPREET BHANGRA, MANDY BRAR, WISDOM DA COSTA, 
PHIL HASELER (VICE-CHAIRMAN) AND GURCH SINGH 

SUBSTITUTE MEMBERS
COUNCILLORS JOHN BALDWIN, CHRISTINE BATESON, JOHN BOWDEN AND 
NEIL KNOWLES

Karen Shepherd – Head of Governance - Issued: 1 October 2019

Members of the Press and Public are welcome to attend Part I of this meeting. The agenda is available on the Council’s 
web site at www.rbwm.gov.uk or contact the Panel Administrator Wendy Binmore 01628796251

Accessibility - Members of the public wishing to attend this meeting are requested to notify the clerk in advance of any accessibility 
issues

Fire Alarm - In the event of the fire alarm sounding or other emergency, please leave the building quickly and calmly by the nearest 
exit. Do not stop to collect personal belongings and do not use the lifts. Do not re-enter the building until told to do so by a 
member of staff.

Recording of Meetings –In line with the council’s commitment to transparency the public part of the meeting will be audio 
recorded, and may also be filmed and broadcast through the online application Periscope. If filmed, the footage will be available 

Public Document Pack

http://www.rbwm.gov.uk/
http://www.rbwm.gov.uk/


through the council’s main Twitter feed @RBWM or via the Periscope website. The audio recording will also be made available on 
the RBWM website, after the meeting. 

Filming, recording and photography of public Council meetings may be undertaken by any person attending the meeting. By 
entering the meeting room you are acknowledging that you may be audio or video recorded and that this recording will be in the 
public domain. If you have any questions regarding the council’s policy, please speak to the Democratic Services or Legal 
representative at the meeting.



AGENDA

PART I
ITEM SUBJECT PAGE 

NO

1.  ELECTION OF CHAIRMAN

To elect a Chairman.
 

2.  APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE

To receive any apologies for absence.
 

3.  DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

To receive any Declarations of Interest.
 

5 - 6

4.  WORK PROGRAMME

To consider and discuss the work programme.
 

7 - 8

5.  CALL IN - MAIDENHEAD STATION - QUEEN STREET JUNCTION

To consider the above Call-in.
 

9 - 12





 
MEMBERS’ GUIDE TO DECLARING INTERESTS IN MEETINGS  

 
Disclosure at Meetings 
 
If a Member has not disclosed an interest in their Register of Interests, they must make the declaration of 
interest at the beginning of the meeting, or as soon as they are aware that they have a DPI or Prejudicial 
Interest. If a Member has already disclosed the interest in their Register of Interests they are still required to 
disclose this in the meeting if it relates to the matter being discussed.   
 
A member with a DPI or Prejudicial Interest may make representations at the start of the item but must not 
take part in the discussion or vote at a meeting. The speaking time allocated for Members to make 
representations is at the discretion of the Chairman of the meeting.  In order to avoid any accusations of taking 
part in the discussion or vote, after speaking, Members should move away from the panel table to a public area 
or, if they wish, leave the room.  If the interest declared has not been entered on to a Members’ Register of 
Interests, they must notify the Monitoring Officer in writing within the next 28 days following the meeting.  

 
Disclosable Pecuniary Interests (DPIs) (relating to the Member or their partner) include: 
 

 Any employment, office, trade, profession or vocation carried on for profit or gain. 

 Any payment or provision of any other financial benefit made in respect of any expenses occurred in 
carrying out member duties or election expenses. 

 Any contract under which goods and services are to be provided/works to be executed which has not been 
fully discharged. 

 Any beneficial interest in land within the area of the relevant authority. 

 Any licence to occupy land in the area of the relevant authority for a month or longer. 

 Any tenancy where the landlord is the relevant authority, and the tenant is a body in which the relevant 
person has a beneficial interest. 

 Any beneficial interest in securities of a body where:  
a) that body has a piece of business or land in the area of the relevant authority, and  
b) either (i) the total nominal value of the securities exceeds £25,000 or one hundredth of the total issued 
share capital of that body or (ii) the total nominal value of the shares of any one class belonging to the 
relevant person exceeds one hundredth of the total issued share capital of that class. 

 
Any Member who is unsure if their interest falls within any of the above legal definitions should seek advice 
from the Monitoring Officer in advance of the meeting. 
 
A Member with a DPI should state in the meeting: ‘I declare a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest in item x 
because xxx. As soon as we come to that item, I will leave the room/ move to the public area for the 
entire duration of the discussion and not take part in the vote.’ 
 
Or, if making representations on the item: ‘I declare a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest in item x because xxx. 
As soon as we come to that item, I will make representations, then I will leave the room/ move to the 
public area for the entire duration of the discussion and not take part in the vote.’ 
 
Prejudicial Interests 
 
Any interest which a reasonable, fair minded and informed member of the public would reasonably believe is so 
significant that it harms or impairs the Member’s ability to judge the public interest in the item, i.e. a Member’s 
decision making is influenced by their interest so that they are not able to impartially consider relevant issues.   
 
A Member with a Prejudicial interest should state in the meeting: ‘I declare a Prejudicial Interest in item x 
because xxx. As soon as we come to that item, I will leave the room/ move to the public area for the 
entire duration of the discussion and not take part in the vote.’ 
 
Or, if making representations in the item: ‘I declare a Prejudicial Interest in item x because xxx. As soon as 
we come to that item, I will make representations, then I will leave the room/ move to the public area for 
the entire duration of the discussion and not take part in the vote.’ 
 
Personal interests 
 
Any other connection or association which a member of the public may reasonably think may influence a 
Member when making a decision on council matters.  
 

Members with a Personal Interest should state at the meeting: ‘I wish to declare a Personal Interest in item x 
because xxx’. As this is a Personal Interest only, I will take part in the discussion and vote on the 
matter. 5

Agenda Item 3



This page is intentionally left blank



WORK PROGRAMME- INFRASTRUCTURE OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY PANEL

DIRECTORS  Duncan Sharkey (Managing Director)
 Russell O’Keefe (Executive Director) 

LINK OFFICERS & 
HEADS OF SERVICES 

 Jenifer Jackson (Head of Planning) 
 Maggie Nelson (Head of Housing Services) 
 Anna Robinson (Strategy and Performance Manager) 
 Ben Smith (Head of Commissioning & Communities) 

MEETING: 3rd FEBRUARY 2020 

ITEM RESPONSIBLE OFFICER
Scrutiny Review on the Dedworth Rd/Hatch Ln Junction 
Improvements

Hilary Hall / Ben Smith 

[Subject to TFG]- Final recommendations from TFG (for 
Approval and onward submission to full council if any 
changes made.) 

The Chair, Cllr McWilliams 

Annual Scrutiny Report- Draft Chairman & Lead Officers  
Budget Report Lead Officers & Finance  

Q2 Performance Update Report Strategy and Performance Manager

Work Programme Panel clerk
TASK AND FINISH
TBC 

MEETING: 7TH APRIL 2020 

ITEM RESPONSIBLE OFFICER
Annual Scrutiny Report (Final version for approval and 
submission to Full Council) 

Chairman & Lead Officers 

Q3 Performance Update Report Strategy and Performance Manager 
Work Programme Panel clerk
TASK AND FINISH
TBC 

7

Agenda Item 4



This page is intentionally left blank



 

Report Title:     Member Call In - Maidenhead Station 
Enhancements: Queen Street Junction 
Arrangements 

 

Contains Confidential or 
Exempt Information? 

No - Part I  

Meeting and Date:  Infrastructure Overview and Scrutiny Panel 
9 October 2019 

 

 

1. REASON(S) FOR CALL IN 

1.1 The call-in notice, submitted on 30 September 2019 stated the following 
reasons for calling in the decision: 

 

 I believe the decision by Cabinet conflicts with the policy framework due to the 
additional congestion that I foresee will be generated in the vicinity of the 
Braywick Road roundabout and actioned by removal of the right turn from 
Queen Street onto the A308. 

 Maidenhead Town Centre AAP Policy MTC 14 (Accessibility).  Whilst the 
decision supports the objectives of this policy in relation to several modes of 
travel there is a specific conflict with the stated aim; “optimise traffic flow and 
circulation including the use of signage to minimise congestion”. 

 Local Transport Plan – Policy SEG6 (Network Management).  The objective of 
this policy is focused on improving the efficiency of operations of the road 
network in order to minimise congestion and delay and associated carbon 
emissions.  I reason that the decision made conflicts with this policy. 

 Local Transport Plan – Policy QOL2 (Air Quality).  As a consequence of the 
additional congestion foreseen this decision conflicts with the objectives of this 
policy, which seeks to reduce concentrations of atmospheric pollutants with 
measures that tackle congestion.   

2. MEMBERS CALLING IN THE REPORT 

2.1 The call-in notice was signed by the following Members: Councillors Brar 
(Member of the Infrastructure O&S Panel), Del Campo and Baldwin. 

3. Panel Options 

3.1 Having considered the Call-In the Overview and Scrutiny Panel may: 
 

 
In accordance with Part 3 B7 and Part 4 A16 of the Constitution, the 26 September  
2019 Cabinet decision relating to the item ‘Maidenhead Station Enhancements: 
Queen Street Junction Arrangements’ has been called in for review by the 
Infrastructure Overview & Scrutiny Panel. 
 

9

Agenda Item 5



i. to take no further action, in which case the decision will take effect 

immediately; 

ii. to refer the decision back to the decision-maker for re-consideration, 

setting out the nature of the Panel’s concerns; the decision-maker 

must then re-consider the matter with a further 5 working days, taking 

into account the concerns of the Overview and Scrutiny Panel, before 

making a final decisions;  

iii. to refer the matter to full Council, in which case paragraph (h) below 

will apply; or 

iv. to refer the matter to a sub group of the Panel for further 

consideration and report back to the Panel within a specified period 

not exceeding 14 days, in which case the Panel will, at its 

reconvened meeting take one of the decisions set out above; if the 

Panel does not reconvene within 14 days or does reconvene but 

does not refer the matter back to the decision maker or to the full 

Council, the decision will take effect on the date of the reconvened 

Panel meeting or the expiry of that further 14 day period, whichever 

is the earlier. 

g) If, following an objection to the decision, the Overview and Scrutiny Panel 
does not meet in the period set out above, or does meet but does not 
refer the matter back to the decision making person or body, the decision 
shall take effect on the date of the Overview and Scrutiny Panel or the 
expiry of that further 5 clear working day period, whichever is the earlier. 

 
h) If the matter was referred to Council and the Council does not object to 

a decision which has been made, then no further action is necessary and 
the decision will be effective in accordance with the provision below.  
However, if the Council does object, it has no locus to make decisions in 
respect of an executive decision unless it is contrary to the Policy 
Framework, or contrary to or not wholly consistent with the Budget. 
Unless that is the case, the Council will refer any decision to which it 
objects back to the decision making person or body, together with the 
Council’s view on the decision. That decision making body or person 
shall choose whether to amend the decision or not before reaching a final 
decision and implementing it. Where the decision was taken by the 
Cabinet as a whole or a committee of it, a meeting will be convened to 
reconsider within 5 clear working days of the Council request.  Where the 
decision was made by an individual, the individual will reconsider within 
5 clear working days of the Council request. 

 
i) If the Council does not meet, or if it does but does not refer the decision 

back to the decision making body or person, the decision will become 
effective on the date of the Council meeting or expiry of the period in 
which the Council meeting should have been held, whichever is the 
earlier. 

 

10



4. APPENDICES  

4.1 This report is supported by two appendices: 

 Cabinet Decision 26 September 2019 (attached) 

 Cabinet report 26 September 2019- ‘Maidenhead Station Enhancements: 
Queen Street Junction Arrangements’ Electronic version only. 

5. BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS 

5.1 This report is supported by two background documents: 

 Council Constitution – Part 4 A - Purpose and Procedure Rules for O&S 

 Cabinet agenda – 26 September 2019 
 

  

11

https://rbwm.moderngov.co.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=132&MId=7502&Ver=4
https://rbwm.moderngov.co.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=132&MId=7502&Ver=4
https://rbwm.moderngov.co.uk/documents/s26421/Cab%20rpt%20Proposed%20revisions%20to%20the%20HMMP%20Cab%2019-05-19.pdf
https://rbwm.moderngov.co.uk/ecSDDisplay.aspx?NAME=SD558&ID=558&RPID=3691830
https://rbwm.moderngov.co.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=132&MId=7502


Appendix A 
 

CABINET DRAFT MINUTES – 26 SEPTEMBER 2019 
 
 

MAIDENHEAD STATION ENHANCEMENTS: QUEEN STREET JUNCTION 
ARRANGEMENTS  
 
The Leader of the Council and Chairman of Cabinet, Business, Economic Development and 
Property introduced the report regarding the Queen Street junction arrangements. 
 
The Chairman informed Cabinet that approval for the project had already been through Cabinet 
and this was next phase of the Maidenhead Station Improvement Scheme project.  
Consultation on this phase had been undertaken including discussion at the Maidenhead Town 
Forum.   
 
The overall project was valued at £4.5 million and was mainly funded by Thames Valley 
Berkshire Local Enterprise Partnership who had approved the business case for the overall 
scheme. 
 
This phase would see the Queen Street / A308 junction being redesigned with the right-turn 
for motorists from Queen Street removed to create improved facilities for pedestrians and 
cyclists.  A pilot had been run throughout the summer and all three statutory services had said 
there would be no impact upon their operations.   
 
The consultation summary was attached to the report and the Chairman provided the following 
highlights, pedestrians and cyclists were overwhelmingly in support of the scheme, 70% of 
people believe it would improve connectivity between the town centre and the station, 67% felt 
it would improve public space, 66% felt it would result in better safety for pedestrians and 64% 
felt it would be better for cyclists.  60% of people believed it would improve the junction, 
however only 40% believed it would improve traffic flow.  The chairman reported that he felt 
that this was due to the temporary traffic lights not being able to sync with the permanent lights.   
 
The Deputy Leader of Council, HR, IT, Legal Services (Including Performance Management) 
and Windsor mentioned that with the Braywick leisure centre, the York Road development and 
this project improving the infrastructure of Maidenhead.  This was part of making Maidenhead 
the best it could be. 
 
The Lead Member for Finance and Ascot said he had attended a recent LGA course where all 
of the five leaders of councils across the country presenting said how important ‘Place’ was, 
having a place where people wanted to live and work.  The Lead Member for Planning and 
Maidenhead reiterated these sentiments and also mentioned that building a place to live was 
about people as well as building. 
 
The Lead Member for Environmental Services, Climate Change, Sustainability and Culture 
said she approved of the scheme but would have liked to have seen more biodiversity such as 
green walls. 
 
 Resolved unanimously that:  Cabinet notes the report and: 
 

 Endorses that the junction improvements at Queen Street / A308 as 
previously approved as part of the business case and set out in Appendix 
A be delivered 

 

12


	Agenda
	3 Declarations of Interest
	4 Work Programme
	5 Call in - Maidenhead Station - Queen Street Junction

